

WSR 25-04-108

PROPOSED RULES

HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY

[Filed February 4, 2025, 3:42 p.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 25-01-099.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: WAC 182-550-4900 Disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments—General provisions, 182-550-4935 DSH eligibility—Change in hospital ownership, 182-550-4940 Disproportionate share hospital independent audit findings and recoupment process, 182-550-5000 Payment method—Low income disproportionate share hospital (LIDSH), 182-550-5150 Payment method—Medical care services disproportionate share hospital (MCSDSH), 182-550-5200 Payment method—Small rural disproportionate share hospital (SRDSH), 182-550-5300 Payment method—Children's health program disproportionate share hospital (CHPDSH), and 182-550-5400 Payment method—Public hospital disproportionate share hospital (PHDSH).

Hearing Location(s): On March 11, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. The health care authority (HCA) holds public hearings virtually without a physical meeting place. To attend the virtual public hearing, you must register in advance at https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_slpnm0KASVK81uTFRRtb2w. If the link above opens with an error message, please try using a different browser. After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the public hearing.

Date of Intended Adoption: Not sooner than March 12, 2025.

Submit Written Comments to: HCA Rules Coordinator, P.O. Box 42716, Olympia, WA 98504-2716, email arc@hca.wa.gov, fax 360-586-9727, beginning February 5, 2025, 8:00 a.m., by March 11, 2025, by 11:59 p.m.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Johanna Larson, phone 360-725-1349, fax 360-586-9727, telecommunication relay service 711, email Johanna.Larson@hca.wa.gov, by February 21, 2025.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: HCA is amending these rules as an overall housekeeping project. Additionally, HCA is removing definitions for "base-year" and "uninsured patient," removing "with special needs" language from low-income clients, updating the abbreviation of the medicaid inpatient utilization rate from MIPUR to MIUR to align with Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, updating WAC cross referencing, standardizing language, removing language that the DSH application is posted to HCA's website, updating that HCA will use the medicare cost report rather than the DRDF to determine a hospital's MUIR, removing DSH programs no longer funded and not part of the program, and audit requests for additional information must be received 10 days from the initial notification. Also, updating the name of the "provider data summary schedule (PDSS)" to "schedule of annual reporting requirements (SARR)."

Reasons Supporting Proposal: See purpose.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 41.05.021 and 41.05.160.

Statute Being Implemented: RCW 41.05.021 and 41.05.160.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: HCA, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Valerie Freudenstein, P.O. Box 42716, Olympia, WA 98504-2716, 360-725-1344; Imple-

mentation and Enforcement: Mary O'Hare, P.O. Box 42716, Olympia, WA 98504, 360-725-9820.

A school district fiscal impact statement is not required under RCW 28A.305.135.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. RCW 34.05.328 does not apply to HCA rules unless requested by the joint administrative rules review committee or applied voluntarily.

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt from requirements of the Regulatory Fairness Act because the proposal:

Is exempt under RCW 19.85.025(4).

Explanation of exemptions: The proposed rules are housekeeping updates for hospitals; therefore, they do not affect small businesses.

Scope of exemption for rule proposal:

Is fully exempt.

February 4, 2025
Wendy Barcus
Rules Coordinator

RDS-6138.1

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 23-11-007, filed 5/4/23, effective 6/4/23)

WAC 182-550-4900 Disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments

—**General provisions.** (1) As required by Section 1902 (a) (13) (A) of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1396 (a) (13) (A)) and RCW 74.09.730, the medicaid agency makes payment adjustments to eligible hospitals that serve a disproportionate number of low-income clients (~~(with special needs)~~). These adjustments are also known as disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments.

(2) No hospital has a legal entitlement to any DSH payment. A hospital may receive DSH payments only if:

(a) It satisfies the requirements of 42 U.S.C. 1396r-4;

(b) It satisfies all the requirements of agency rules and policies; and

(c) The legislature appropriates sufficient funds.

(3) For purposes of eligibility for DSH payments, the following definitions apply:

(a) (~~"Base year" means the 12-month medicare cost report year that ended during the calendar year immediately preceding the year in which the state fiscal year (SFY) for which the DSH application is being made begins.~~

~~(b))~~ "Case mix index (CMI)" means the average of diagnosis related group (DRG) weights for all of an individual hospital's DRG-paid medicaid claims during the SFY two years prior to the SFY for which the DSH application is being made.

~~((c))~~ (b) "Charity care" means necessary hospital care rendered to persons unable to pay for the hospital services or unable to pay the deductibles or coinsurance amounts required by a third-party payer. The charity care amount is determined in accordance with the hospital's published charity care policy.

~~((d))~~ (c) "DSH reporting data file (DRDF)" means the information submitted by hospitals to the agency which the agency uses to verify medicaid client eligibility and applicable inpatient days.

~~((e))~~ (d) "Hospital-specific DSH cap" means the maximum amount of DSH payments a hospital may receive from the agency during a SFY. If a hospital does not qualify for DSH, the agency will not calculate the hospital-specific DSH cap and the hospital will not receive DSH payments.

~~((f))~~ (e) "Inpatient medicaid days" means inpatient days attributed to clients eligible for Title XIX medicaid programs. Excluded from this count are inpatient days attributed to clients eligible for state administered programs, medicare Part A, Title XXI, the refugee program and the family planning only programs.

~~((g))~~ (f) "Low income utilization rate (LIUR)" means the sum of the following two percentages used to determine whether a hospital is DSH-eligible:

(i) The ratio of payments received by the hospital for patient services provided to clients under medicaid (including managed care), plus cash subsidies received by the hospital from state and local governments for patient services, divided by total payments received by the hospital from all patient categories; plus

(ii) The ratio of inpatient charity care charges, less inpatient cash subsidies received by the hospital from state and local governments, less contractual allowances and discounts, divided by total charges for inpatient services.

~~((h))~~ (g) "Medicaid inpatient utilization rate (~~((MIPUR))~~ MIUR)" means the calculation (expressed as a percentage) used to determine whether a hospital is DSH-eligible. The numerator of which is the hospital's number of inpatient days attributable to clients who (for such days) were eligible for medical assistance during the base year (regardless of whether such clients received medical assistance on a fee-for-service basis or through a managed care ~~((entity))~~ organization), and the denominator of which is the total number of the hospital's inpatient days in that period. "Inpatient days" include each day in which a person (including a newborn) is an inpatient in the hospital, whether or not the person is in a specialized ward and whether or not the person remains in the hospital for lack of suitable placement elsewhere.

~~((i))~~ (h) "Medicare cost report year" means the 12-month period included in the annual cost report a medicare-certified hospital or institutional provider is required by law to submit to its fiscal intermediary.

~~((j))~~ (i) "Nonrural hospital" means a hospital that:

(i) Is not participating in the "full cost" public hospital certified public expenditure (CPE) payment program as described in WAC 182-550-4650;

(ii) Is not designated as an "institution for mental diseases (IMD)" as defined in WAC ~~((182-550-2600-(2)-(d)))~~ 182-500-0050;

(iii) Is not a small rural hospital as defined in (n) of this subsection; and

(iv) Is located in the state of Washington or in a designated bordering city. For DSH purposes, the agency considers as nonrural any hospital located in a designated bordering city.

~~((k))~~ (j) "Obstetric services" means routine, nonemergency obstetric services and the delivery of babies.

~~((l))~~ (k) "Service year" means the one-year period used to measure the costs and associated charges for hospital services. The

service year may refer to a hospital's fiscal year or medicare cost report year, or to a state fiscal year.

~~((m))~~ (l) "Statewide disproportionate share hospital (DSH) cap" means the maximum amount per SFY that the state can distribute in DSH payments to all qualifying hospitals during a SFY.

~~((n))~~ (m) "Small rural hospital" means a hospital that:

(i) Is not participating in the "full cost" public hospital certified public expenditure (CPE) payment program as described in WAC 182-550-4650;

(ii) Is not designated as an "institution for mental diseases (IMD)" as defined in WAC ~~((182-550-2600-(2)-(d)))~~ 182-500-0050;

(iii) Has fewer than 75 acute beds;

(iv) Is located in the state of Washington; and

(v) Is located in a city or town with a nonstudent population of no more than 17,806 in calendar year 2008, as determined by population data reported by the Washington state office of financial management population of cities, towns and counties used for the allocation of state revenues. This nonstudent population is used for SFY 2010, which begins July 1, 2009. For each subsequent SFY, the nonstudent population is increased by two percent.

~~((o) "Uninsured patient" means a person without creditable coverage as defined in 45 C.F.R. 146.113. (An "insured patient," for DSH program purposes, is a person with creditable coverage, even if the insurer did not pay the full charges for the service.) To determine whether a service provided to an uninsured patient may be included for DSH application and calculation purposes, the agency considers only services that would have been covered and paid through the agency's fee-for-service process.)~~

(4) To be considered for a DSH payment for each SFY, a hospital must meet the criteria in this section:

(a) DSH application requirements.

(i) Only a hospital located in the state of Washington or in a designated bordering city is eligible to apply for and receive DSH payments. An institution for mental disease (IMD) owned and operated by the state of Washington is exempt from the DSH application requirement.

(ii) A hospital that meets DSH program criteria is eligible for DSH payments in any SFY only if the agency receives the hospital's DSH application by the published deadline ~~((posted on the agency's website))~~.

(b) The DSH application review and correction period.

(i) This subsection applies only to DSH applications that meet the requirements under (a) of this subsection.

(ii) The agency reviews and may verify any information provided by the hospital on a DSH application. However, each hospital has the responsibility for ensuring its DSH application is complete and accurate.

(iii) If the agency finds that a hospital's application is incomplete or contains incorrect information, the agency will notify the hospital. The hospital must submit a new, corrected application. The agency must receive the new DSH application from the hospital by the published deadline ~~((for corrected DSH applications posted on the agency's website))~~.

(iv) If a hospital finds that its application is incomplete or contains incorrect information, it may choose to submit changes and/or corrections to the DSH application. The agency must receive the corrected, complete, and signed DSH application from the hospital by the

~~published deadline ((for corrected DSH applications posted on the agency's website)).~~

(c) Official DSH application.

(i) The agency considers as official the last signed DSH application submitted by the hospital as of the deadline for corrected DSH applications. A hospital cannot change its official DSH application. Only those hospitals with an official DSH application are eligible for DSH payments.

(ii) If the agency finds that a hospital's official DSH application is incomplete or contains inaccurate information that affects the hospital's LIDSH payment(s), the hospital does not qualify for, will not receive, and cannot retain, LIDSH payment(s). Refer to WAC 182-550-5000.

(5) A hospital is a disproportionate share hospital for a specific SFY if the hospital satisfies the medicaid inpatient utilization rate ((MIPUR)) MIUR requirement (discussed in (a) of this subsection), and the obstetric services requirement (discussed in (b) of this subsection).

(a) The hospital must have ((a-MIPUR)) an MIUR of one percent or more; and

(b) Unless one of the exceptions described in (i)(A) or (B) of this subsection applies, the hospital must have at least two obstetricians who have staff privileges at the hospital and who have agreed to provide obstetric services to eligible ((individuals)) clients.

(i) The obstetric services requirement does not apply to a hospital that:

(A) Provides inpatient services predominantly to ((individuals)) clients younger than age 18; or

(B) Did not offer nonemergency obstetric services to the general public as of December 22, 1987, when section 1923 of the Social Security Act was enacted.

(ii) For hospitals located in rural areas, "obstetrician" means any physician with staff privileges at the hospital to perform non-emergency obstetric procedures.

(6) To determine a hospital's ((MIPUR)) MIUR, the agency uses ((inpatient days as follows):

~~(a) The total inpatient days on the official DSH application if this number is greater than the total inpatient hospital days on the medicare cost report; and~~

~~(b) The MMIS medicaid days as determined by the DSH reporting data file (DRDF) process if the Washington state medicaid days on the official DSH application do not match the eligible days on the final DRDF. If the hospital did not submit a DRDF, the agency uses paid medicaid days from MMIS.) the applicable year medicare cost report, as filed by the hospital.~~

(7) The agency administers the following DSH programs (depending on legislative budget appropriations):

(a) Low income disproportionate share hospital (LIDSH);

(b) Medical care services disproportionate share hospital (MCSDSH);

(c) Small rural disproportionate share hospital (SRDSH);

~~(d) ((Small rural indigent assistance disproportionate share hospital (SRIADSH));~~

~~(e) Nonrural indigent assistance disproportionate share hospital (NRIADSH);~~

~~(f))~~ Public hospital disproportionate share hospital (PHDSH);

and

~~((g))~~ (e) Children's health program disproportionate share hospital (CHPDSH) ~~(; and~~
~~(h) Sole community disproportionate share hospital (SCDSH))~~.

(8) The agency allows a hospital to receive any one or all of the DSH payment it qualifies for, up to the individual hospital's DSH cap (see subsection (10) of this section) and provided that total DSH payments do not exceed the statewide DSH cap. To be eligible for payment under multiple DSH programs, a hospital must meet:

(a) The basic requirements in subsection (5) of this section; and

(b) The eligibility requirements for the particular DSH payment, as discussed in the applicable DSH program WAC.

(9) For each SFY, the agency calculates DSH payments for each DSH program for eligible hospitals using data from each hospital's base year. The agency does not use base year data for MCSDSH and CHPDSH payments, which are calculated based on specific claims data.

(10) The agency's total DSH payments to a hospital for any given SFY cannot exceed the hospital-specific DSH cap for that SFY. Except for critical access hospitals (CAHs), the agency determines a hospital's DSH cap as follows. The agency:

(a) Uses the overall ratio of costs-to-charges (RCC) to determine costs for:

(i) Medicaid services, including medicaid services provided under managed care organization (MCO) plans; and

(ii) Uninsured charges; then

(b) Subtracts all payments related to the costs derived in (a) of this subsection; then

(c) Makes any adjustments required and/or authorized by federal statute or regulation.

(11) A CAH's DSH cap is based strictly on the cost to the hospital of providing services to medicaid clients served under MCO plans, and uninsured patients. To determine a CAH's DSH cap amount, the agency:

(a) Uses the overall RCC to determine costs for:

(i) Medicaid services provided under MCO plans; and

(ii) Uninsured charges; then

(b) Subtracts the total payments made by, or on behalf of, the medicaid clients serviced under MCO plans, and uninsured patients.

(12) In any given federal fiscal year, the total of the agency's DSH payments cannot exceed the statewide DSH cap as published in the federal register.

(13) If the agency's DSH payments for any given federal fiscal year exceed the statewide DSH cap, the agency will adjust DSH payments to each hospital to account for the amount overpaid. The agency makes adjustments in the following program order:

(a) PHDSH;

(b) ~~((SRIADSH;~~

~~(e))~~ SRDSH;

~~((d) SCDSH;~~

~~(e) NRIADSH;~~

~~(f))~~ (c) MCSDSH;

~~((g))~~ (d) CHPDSH; and

~~((h))~~ (e) LIDSH.

(14) If the statewide DSH cap is exceeded, the agency will recoup DSH payments made under the various DSH programs, in the order of precedence described in subsection (13) of this section, starting with PHDSH, until the amount exceeding the statewide DSH cap is reduced to zero. See specific program regulations in the Washington Administra-

tive Code for description of how amounts to be recouped are determined.

(15) The total amount the agency may distribute annually under a particular DSH program is capped by legislative appropriation. Any changes in payment amount to a hospital in a particular DSH program means a redistribution of payments within that DSH program. When necessary, the agency will recoup from hospitals to make additional payments to other DSH-eligible hospitals within that DSH program.

(16) If funds in a specific DSH program need to be redistributed because of legislative, administrative, or other state action, only those hospitals eligible for that DSH program will be involved in the redistribution.

(a) If an individual hospital has been overpaid by a specified amount, the agency will recoup that overpayment amount from the hospital and redistribute it among the other eligible hospitals in the DSH program. The additional DSH payment to be given to each of the other hospitals from the recouped amount is proportional to each hospital's share of the particular DSH program.

(b) If an individual hospital has been underpaid by a specified amount, the agency will pay that hospital the additional amount owed by recouping from the other hospitals in the DSH program. The amount to be recouped from each of the other hospitals is proportional to each hospital's share of the particular DSH program.

(c) This subsection does not apply to the DSH independent audit findings and recoupment process described in WAC 182-550-4940.

(17) All information related to a hospital's DSH application is subject to audit by the agency or its designee. The agency determines the extent and timing of the audits. For example, the agency or its designee may choose to do an audit of an individual hospital's DSH application and/or supporting documentation, or audit all hospitals that qualified for a particular DSH program after payments have been distributed under that program.

(18) If a hospital's submission of incorrect information or failure to submit correct information results in DSH overpayment to that hospital, the agency will recoup the overpayment amount as allowed in RCW 74.09.220 and chapter 41.05A RCW.

(19) DSH calculations use fiscal year data, and DSH payments are distributed based on funding for a specific SFY. Therefore, unless otherwise specified, changes and clarifications to DSH program rules apply for the full SFY in which the rules are adopted.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 15-18-065, filed 8/27/15, effective 9/27/15)

WAC 182-550-4935 DSH eligibility—Change in hospital ownership.

(1) For purposes of eligibility for disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments, a change in hospital ownership has occurred if any of the criteria in WAC 182-550-4200(1) is met.

(2) To be considered eligible for DSH, a hospital whose ownership has changed must notify the medicaid agency in writing no later than (~~thirty~~) 30 days after the change in ownership becomes final. The notice must include the new entity's fiscal year end.

(3) A hospital that did not offer nonemergency obstetric services to the general public as of December 22, 1987, when section 1923 of

the Social Security Act was enacted, and changes ownership after that date is not eligible for DSH unless it continues to be classified as an acute care hospital serving pediatric and/or adult patients. See WAC 182-550-4900(5) for the obstetric services and utilization rate requirements for DSH eligibility.

(4) If the fiscal year reported on a hospital's medicare cost report does not exactly match the fiscal year reported on the hospital's DSH application to the agency, and if therefore the utilization data reported to the agency do not agree, the agency will use as the data source the document that gives the higher number of total inpatient hospital days for purposes of calculating the hospital's medicaid inpatient utilization rate ((MIPUR)) MIUR). See WAC 182-550-4900(6) ((b)).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 15-01-037, filed 12/8/14, effective 1/8/15)

WAC 182-550-4940 Disproportionate share hospital independent audit findings and recoupment process. (1) In order to comply with federal law and regulation (42 U.S.C. 1396r-4 (j)(2); 42 C.F.R. Part 455, Subpart D), the medicaid agency contracts with an independent auditor to conduct an annual, independent, certified audit of the agency's disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments. Chapter 182-502A WAC is not applicable to the independent, certified audits described in this section.

(2) Under this section, a hospital may only dispute an overpayment, not an underpayment. Appeal rights and process follow WAC 182-502-0230.

(3) Hospitals must comply with the agency's or the auditor's requests for documentation. A hospital's failure to provide requested documentation ((may)) will result in a finding that any or all of the DSH payments for the audited year are overpayments.

((3)) (4) Beginning in state fiscal year 2011, an audit finding that demonstrates DSH payments made to a hospital in that year exceeded the documented hospital-specific DSH cap (as defined in WAC 182-550-4900((3))), is considered a discovery of an overpayment under 42 C.F.R. Part 433, Subpart F.

((4)) (5) Hospitals must return overpayments to the agency for redistribution to qualifying hospitals. A qualifying hospital is defined as a disproportionate share hospital that has a positive hospital-specific DSH cap.

((5)) (6) The additional DSH payment to be given to each of the other qualifying hospitals from the recouped amount is proportional to each hospital's share of the particular DSH program. Only the recouped payments are redistributed among those eligible DSH hospitals that have a remaining positive hospital-specific DSH cap.

((6)) (7) The independent auditor will provide preliminary audit results to each hospital that received DSH payments, including a statement as to whether the hospital's payments did or did not exceed the hospital's DSH cap. Hospitals identified as receiving DSH payments exceeding their hospital-specific DSH cap may request additional information on the preliminary audit results. The agency must receive the hospital's request for the additional information on the preliminary audit results no later than ((the last working day in November of

~~the year in which the audit is conducted)) 10 days from the initial notification which is sent electronically to the hospital.~~

~~((7))~~ (8) In response to a hospital's timely request under subsection ~~((6))~~ (7) of this section, the independent auditor will provide the hospital with at least the following information specific to the requesting hospital:

- (a) Calculation of the medicaid inpatient utilization rate (MIUR);
- (b) Regular inpatient and outpatient medicaid fee for service basic rate payments;
- (c) Supplemental/enhanced inpatient and outpatient medicaid payments;
- (d) Total medicaid payments;
- (e) Total cost of care;
- (f) Total cost of care of the uninsured; and
- (g) A ~~((provider data summary schedule (PDSS) to compare to the agency's report))~~ schedule of annual reporting requirements (SARR), required by 42 C.F.R. Sec. 447.299, Subpart E, upon request from the hospital.

~~((8) Under this section, a hospital may only dispute an overpayment. An overpayment hearing is held under WAC 182-502-0230.))~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 15-18-065, filed 8/27/15, effective 9/27/15)

WAC 182-550-5000 Payment method—Low income disproportionate share hospital (LIDSH). (1) The medicaid agency makes low income disproportionate share hospital (LIDSH) payments to qualifying hospitals through the disproportionate share hospital (DSH) program.

(2) To qualify for an LIDSH payment, a hospital must:

- (a) Not be a hospital eligible for public disproportionate share (PHDSH) payments (see WAC 182-550-5400);
- (b) Not be designated as an "institution for mental diseases (IMD)" as defined in WAC 182-550-2600 (2) (d);
- (c) Meet the criteria in WAC 182-550-4900 (4) and (5);
- (d) Be an in-state hospital. A hospital located out-of-state or in a designated bordering city is not eligible to receive LIDSH payments; and
- (e) Meet at least one of the following requirements. The hospital must:
 - (i) Have a medicaid inpatient utilization rate ~~((MIPUR))~~ MIUR as defined in WAC 182-550-4900 (3) ~~((h))~~ (g) at least one standard deviation above the mean medicaid inpatient utilization rate of in-state hospitals that receive medicaid payments; or
 - (ii) Have a low income utilization rate (LIUR) as defined in WAC 182-550-4900 (3) ~~((g))~~ (h) that exceeds ~~((twenty-five))~~ 25 percent.

(3) The agency pays hospitals qualifying for LIDSH payments from a legislatively appropriated pool. The maximum amount of LIDSH payments in any state fiscal year (SFY) is the funding set by the state's appropriations act for LIDSH. The amount that the state appropriates for LIDSH may vary from year to year.

(4) The agency determines LIDSH payments to each LIDSH eligible hospital using the following factors from the specific hospital's base year ~~((as defined in WAC 182-550-4900 (3) (a)))~~:

(a) The hospital's medicaid inpatient utilization rate ((MIPUR)) MIUR) (see WAC 182-550-4900 for how the agency calculates the ((MI-PUR)) MIUR).

(b) The hospital's medicaid case mix index (CMI). The agency calculates the CMI by:

(i) Using the DRG weight for each of the hospital's paid inpatient claims assigned in the year the claim was paid;

(ii) Summing the DRG weights; and

(iii) Dividing this total by the number of claims.

The CMI the agency uses for LIDSH calculations is not the same as the CMI the agency uses in other hospital rate calculations.

(c) The number of the hospital's Title XIX medicaid discharges. The agency includes in this number only the discharges pertaining to Washington state medicaid clients.

(5) The agency calculates the LIDSH payment to an eligible hospital as follows.

(a) The agency:

(i) Divides the hospital's ((MIPUR)) MIUR by the average ((MI-PUR)) MIUR of all LIDSH-eligible hospitals; then

(ii) Multiplies the result derived in (a) of this section by the CMI (see (4) (b) of this section), and then by the discharges (see (4) (c) of this section); then

(iii) Converts the product to a percentage of the sum of all such products for individual hospitals; and

(iv) Multiplies this percentage by the legislatively appropriated amount for LIDSH.

(b) If a hospital's calculated LIDSH payment is more than the hospital-specific DSH cap, the payment to the hospital is limited to the hospital-specific DSH cap, and the agency:

(i) Subtracts the LIDSH payment calculated for the hospital to determine the remaining LIDSH appropriation to distribute to the other qualifying hospitals; and

(ii) Proportionately distributes the remaining LIDSH appropriation under the factors in (a) of this subsection.

(6) A hospital receiving LIDSH payments must comply with an agency request for uninsured logs (uninsured logs are documentation of payments, charges, and other information for uninsured patients) to verify its hospital-specific DSH cap.

(7) The agency will not make changes in the LIDSH payment distribution after the applicable SFY has ended. The agency recalculates the LIDSH payment distribution only when the applicable SFY has not yet ended at the time the alleged need for an LIDSH adjustment is identified, and if the agency considers the recalculation necessary and appropriate under its regulations.

(8) Consistent with the provisions of subsection (7) of this section, the agency applies any adjustments to the DSH payment distribution required by legislative, administrative, or other state action, to other DSH programs under WAC 182-550-4900 (13) through (16).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 12-20-029, filed 9/26/12, effective 10/27/12)

WAC 182-550-5150 Payment method—Medical care services disproportionate share hospital (MCSDSH). (1) A hospital is eligible for

the medical care services disproportionate share hospital (MCSDSH) payment if the hospital:

- (a) Meets the criteria in WAC 182-550-4900;
 - (b) Is an in-state or designated bordering city hospital;
 - (c) Provides services to clients eligible under the medical care services program; and
 - (d) Has a medicaid inpatient utilization rate ((MIPUR)) MIUR of one percent or more.
- (2) The medicaid agency determines the MCSDSH payment for each eligible hospital in accordance with WAC 182-550-4800 for inpatient hospital claims submitted for medical care services (MCS) clients.
- (3) The agency makes MCSDSH payments to a hospital on a claim-specific basis for inpatient services.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 15-18-065, filed 8/27/15, effective 9/27/15)

WAC 182-550-5200 Payment method—Small rural disproportionate share hospital (SRDSH). (1) The medicaid agency makes small rural disproportionate share hospital (SRDSH) payments to qualifying small rural hospitals through the disproportionate share hospital (DSH) program.

(2) To qualify for an SRDSH payment, a hospital must:

- (a) Not be participating in the "full cost" public hospital certified public expenditure (CPE) payment program as described in WAC 182-550-4650;
- (b) Not be designated as an "institution for mental diseases (IMD)" as defined in WAC ((182-550-2600(2)(d))) 182-500-0050;
- (c) Meet the criteria in WAC 182-550-4900 (4) and (5);
- (d) Have fewer than ((seventy-five)) 75 acute beds;
- (e) Be an in-state hospital. A hospital located out-of-state or in a designated bordering city is not eligible to receive SRDSH payments; and
- (f) Be located in a city or town with a nonstudent population of no more than ((seventeen thousand eight hundred six)) 17,806 in calendar year 2008, as determined by population data reported by the Washington state office of financial management population of cities, towns, and counties used for the allocation of state revenues. This nonstudent population is used for state fiscal year (SFY) 2010, which began July 1, 2009. For each subsequent SFY, the nonstudent population is increased by two percent.

(3) The agency pays hospitals qualifying for SRDSH payments ((from a legislatively appropriated pool)). The agency determines each hospital's individual SRDSH payment from the total dollars ((in the pool)) using percentages established as follows:

- (a) At the time the SRDSH payment is to be made, the agency calculates each hospital's profitability margin based on the hospital's base year data and audited financial statements.
- (b) The agency determines the average profitability margin for the qualifying hospitals.
- (c) Any hospital with a profitability margin of less than ((one hundred ten)) 110 percent of the average profitability margin for qualifying hospitals receives a profit factor of 1.1. All other hospitals receive a profit factor of 1.0.

(d) The agency:

(i) Identifies the medicaid payment amounts made by the agency to the individual hospital during the SFY two years before the current SFY for which DSH application is being made. These medicaid payment amounts are based on historical data considered to be complete; then

(ii) Multiplies the total medicaid payment amount determined in ~~((subsection (i)))~~ (d) (i) of this subsection by the individual hospital's assigned profit factor (1.1 or 1.0) to identify a revised medicaid payment amount; and

(iii) Divides the revised medicaid payment amount for the individual hospital by the sum of the revised medicaid payment amounts for all qualifying hospitals during the same period.

(4) The agency's SRDSH payments to a hospital may not exceed ~~((one hundred))~~ 100 percent of the projected cost of care for medicaid clients and uninsured patients for that hospital unless an exception is required by federal statute or regulation.

(5) The agency reallocates dollars as defined in the state plan.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 12-20-029, filed 9/26/12, effective 10/27/12)

WAC 182-550-5300 Payment method—Children's health program disproportionate share hospital (CHPDSH). (1) Effective July 1, 2011, a hospital is eligible for the children's health program disproportionate share hospital (CHPDSH) payment if funding is legislatively appropriated and if the hospital:

(a) Meets the criteria in WAC 182-550-4900;

(b) Is an in-state or designated bordering city hospital; or

(c) Provides services to low-income, children's health program (CHP) clients who, because of their citizenship status, are not eligible for medicaid nonemergency health coverage and who are encountering a nonemergency medical condition.

(2) Hospitals qualifying for CHPDSH payments will receive a per claim payment for inpatient and outpatient claims at the equivalent medicaid rate.

(3) The agency determines the CHPDSH payment for each eligible hospital in accordance with:

(a) WAC ~~((182-550-2800 for))~~ 182-550-2900 through 182-550-3000 and other sections in chapter 182-550 WAC that pertain to inpatient hospital claims submitted for CHP clients; and

(b) WAC 182-550-7000 through 182-550-7600 and other sections in chapter 182-550 WAC that pertain to outpatient hospital claims submitted for CHP clients.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 15-11-009, filed 5/7/15, effective 6/7/15)

WAC 182-550-5400 Payment method—Public hospital disproportionate share hospital (PHDSH). (1) The medicaid agency's public hospital disproportionate share hospital (PHDSH) program is a certified public expenditure program for government-operated hospitals. To be eligible

for PHDSH, a hospital must qualify for disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments under WAC 182-550-4900 and be:

(a) Operated by a public hospital district in the state of Washington and participating in the "full cost" public hospital certified public expenditure (CPE) payment program described in WAC 182-550-4650;

(b) Harborview Medical Center; or

(c) University of Washington Medical Center.

(2) The PHDSH payments to a hospital eligible under this program may not exceed the hospital's disproportionate share hospital (DSH) cap calculated according to WAC 182-550-4900(~~(+10)~~). The hospital receives only the federal medical assistance percentage of the total computable payment amount.

(3) Hospitals receiving payment under the PHDSH program must provide the local match for the federal funds through certified public expenditures (CPE). Payments are limited to costs incurred by the participating hospitals.

(4) A hospital receiving payment under the PHDSH program must submit to the agency federally required medicaid cost report schedules apportioning inpatient and outpatient costs, beginning with the services provided during state fiscal year 2006. See WAC 182-550-5410.

(5) PHDSH payments are subject to the availability of DSH funds under the statewide DSH cap. If the statewide DSH cap is exceeded, the agency will recoup PHDSH payments first, but only from hospitals that received total inpatient and DSH payments above the hold harmless level, and only to the extent of the excess amount above the hold harmless level. See WAC 182-550-4900 (13) and (14), and 182-550-4670.